




 
NORTH AURORA VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2020  

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Village Board meeting was conducted live remotely 

via telecommunications. 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Berman called the meeting to order. 
 
SILENT PRAYER - MEDITATION – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
In attendance:  Mayor Dale Berman, Trustee Mark Gaffino, Trustee Mike Lowery, Trustee Laura Curtis, 
Trustee Mark Guethle, Trustee Mark Carroll, Trustee Tao Martinez 
 
Staff in attendance:  Village Administrator Steve Bosco, Finance Director Bill Hannah, Community & 
Economic Development Director Mike Toth, Village Attorney Kevin Drendel, Public Works Director 
John Laskowski, Police Chief Dave Fisher.   
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS - None 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS – None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Village Board Minutes dated 09/21/2020 and Committee of the Whole Minutes dated 9/21/2020 
2. Bills List Dated 10/05/2020 in the Amount of $506,664.17 
3. Pay Request #7, Final, for Well #8 & #9 Electrical Facilities to Frank Marshall Electric in the 

Amount of $57,658.95 
4. Pay Request #3, for 2020 Street Improvement Project to Geneva Construction Company in the 

Amount of $173,559.11 
 

Motion for approval made by Trustee Curtis and seconded by Trustee Lowery. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Lowery – yes, Trustee Gaffino –yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Curtis – yes, 
Trustee Martinez – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval of Ordinance Amending the North Aurora Code Section 5.08.350 to Increase the 
Number Of Class G Liquor Licenses Authorized in the Village Of North Aurora by One  

 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Curtis and seconded by Trustee Lowery. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Lowery – yes, Trustee Gaffino –yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Curtis – yes, 
Trustee Martinez – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
  



 
 

2. Approval of Ordinance Amending the North Aurora Code Section 5.08.350 to Increase the 
Number Of Class A Liquor Licenses Authorized in the Village Of North Aurora by One  

 
Motion for approval made by Trustee Curtis and seconded by Trustee Guethle. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Lowery – yes, Trustee Gaffino –yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Curtis – yes, 
Trustee Martinez – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 

 
 

3. Approval of Special Events Permit for North Aurora Lions Club and VNA for a Drive-
Thru Flu Shot Event 
 

Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Curtis. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Lowery – yes, Trustee Gaffino –yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Curtis – yes, 
Trustee Martinez – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 

 
4. Approval of Ordinance Removing Chapter 2.32 from the Village Code Pertaining to 

Residency Requirements 
 

Motion for approval made by Trustee Gaffino and seconded by Trustee Lowery. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Lowery – yes, Trustee Gaffino –yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Curtis – yes, 
Trustee Martinez – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

5. Approval of Ordinance Amending Title 17 of the North Aurora Code to allow Motor Vehicle 
Repair and/or Service as a Permitted Use in the I-1 Limited Industrial District 
 

Motion for approval made by Trustee Guethle and seconded by Trustee Martinez. Roll Call Vote:  
Trustee Lowery – yes, Trustee Gaffino –yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Curtis 
– yes, Trustee Martinez – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 

6. Approval of Resolution Opposing Kane County Special Use to allow a Short Wave Radio 
Station 

 
Village Administrator Steve Bosco said this item would generally go to a Committee of the Whole 
meeting but due to the schedule Kane County is on the item was presented directly to the board for a vote 
tonight. He explained that Kane County is reviewing a petition for a shortwave radio station on Seavey 
Road that would have a total of three antennas. The location is about 1,700 feet from the nearest Village 
residence; however it is both in the sightline and it would further make the property difficult to develop in 
the future. Kane County will be voting on this item at their October 13 board meeting and as such the 
Village wanted to issue a resolution to formally oppose the approval of the shortwave radio station at the 
County level.  
 
Village President Berman said he believes the antennas would intrude on future Village projects and 
affects the Village’s comprehensive plan. He said he feels that the Village’s neighbors, especially the 
County, should honor the Village’s comprehensive plan and he thus supported the resolution opposing the 
radio station.  
 
 



Motion for approval made by Trustee Carroll and seconded by Trustee Gaffino. Roll Call Vote:  Trustee 
Lowery – yes, Trustee Gaffino –yes, Trustee Carroll – yes, Trustee Guethle – yes, Trustee Curtis – yes, 
Trustee Martinez – yes. Motion approved (6-0). 
 
OLD BUSINESS - None 
VILLAGE PRESIDENT – None  
COMMITTEE REPORTS - None 
TRUSTEES COMMENTS – Trustee Carroll wanted to commend the North Aurora Police Department 
for their transparency and communication specifically on their Facebook page and said it was nice to have 
a Village where the police are so transparent and eager to assist residents. 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT – Village Administrator Bosco said the Village had recently posted 
information about a Village-wide scavenger hunt and there was a lot of positive reception and interest in 
participating.  
ATTORNEY’S REPORT - None 
 
VILLAGE DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
1. Finance - None 
2. Community Development – None  
3. Police – None 
4. Public Works – A new Village Engineer will be starting work in the newly created position on 
Monday, October 12.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION - Motion to adjourn to Executive Session made by Trustee Guethle and 
seconded by Trustee Carroll.  All in favor.  Motion approved.  See Executive Session minutes.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to adjourn made by Trustee Carroll and seconded by Trustee Gaffino.  All in favor.  Motion 
approved. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Natalie F. Stevens 
Deputy Village Clerk  
 
 
 



To Be Paid Proof List

10/13/2020 -  4:17PM

ABlaser

Printed:

User:

Accounts Payable

Batch: 00502.10.2020

Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

1st Ayd Corporation

039020

 52.71Hand Sanitizer- COVID 01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies PSI398809 9/23/2020 10/19/2020

 142.20Hand Sanitizer- COVID 01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies PSI401748 10/2/2020 10/19/2020

 194.91 *Vendor TotalTotal:

ABC Carpet

038040

 500.00Cell Cleaning- PD 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 10062020 10/6/2020 10/19/2020

 500.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Adrian Holloway

468032

 220.88Water Overpayment Refund 60-320-3340 Water Collections 10132020-01 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 7.47Sewer Maint Overpayment Refund 18-320-3350 Sewer Collection 10132020-02 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 228.35 *Vendor TotalTotal:

AIM

046510

 168.00Flex- Sept 2020 01-430-4267 Finance Services 00033424 10/1/2020 10/19/2020

 168.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Aurora Area Convention

003770

 1,940.21Akshar Hotel Tax/ Aug 2020 15-430-4751 North Aurora Days Expenses 09272020 9/27/2020 10/19/2020

 1,940.21 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Bonnell Industries

035410

 322.92Leaf Vac Repair 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 0194375-IN 10/6/2020 10/19/2020

 322.92 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Brown & Brown Of Illinois, Inc.

000520

 30.00Notary- DeLeo 01-440-4799 Misc. 4083147 10/1/2020 10/19/2020

 30.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/13/2020 -  4:17 PM) Page 1

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039020
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039020
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028360844
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576741
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576763
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468032
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468032
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576937
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576938
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=046510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=046510
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028336179
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003770
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=003770
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028330722
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=035410
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576634
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028325519


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

Carus Corporation

033300

 809.96HMO Chem WTP 60-445-4437 Chlorine SLS 100869039/22/2020 10/19/2020

 719.80HMO Chem ETP 60-445-4437 Chlorine SLS 100869069/22/2020 10/19/2020

 1,529.76 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Certified Laboratories Division

048600

 655.63Red Grease, Free Aerosol 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 7110959 9/24/2020 10/19/2020

 655.63 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Cintas Corporation

041590

 64.09Safety Cabinet Items 01-445-4870 Equipment 5031347342 9/16/2020 10/19/2020

 64.09 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Coffman Truck Sales, Inc.

000320

 1.00Safety Sticker 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 178023 9/24/2020 10/19/2020

 1.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

College of Dupage

017690

 295.00Training Class- Manko 01-440-4380 Training 12365 8/13/2020 10/19/2020

 295.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Constellation NewEnergy, Inc.

034130

 1,560.24Street Lights 10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles 18366257501 9/17/2020 10/19/2020

 2,901.03Street Lights/ 211 River Road 10-445-4660 Street Lighting and Poles 18382933201 9/21/2020 10/19/2020

 4,461.27 *Vendor TotalTotal:

D&A Powertrain Components, INC

467649

 1,457.19Repairs- Truck #178 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 232997 9/21/2020 10/19/2020

 1,457.19 *Vendor TotalTotal:

DACRA Adjudication Systems

467842

 1,850.00Adjudication- Sept 2020 01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 2020-321 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 1,850.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Duke & Lee's Johnson's Garage & Towing, Inc.

045190

 2,344.42Exhaust Cleaning- Truck #174 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 073076 9/22/2020 10/19/2020

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/13/2020 -  4:17 PM) Page 2

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033300
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028334118
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028334117
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028359209
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041590
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041590
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028361319
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000320
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=000320
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028362601
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=017690
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=017690
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028331274
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=034130
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=034130
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028363424
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028363423
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467649
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467649
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028361645
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467842
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467842
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028571671
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=045190
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=045190
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576632


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

 2,344.42 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Dunn-Rite Window Cleaning Inc.

467922

 450.00VH Window Cleaning- Sept 2020 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 5248 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 450.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Dustcatchers & Logo Mat, Inc.

023610

 32.55Rugs, Shop Towels 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 76072 9/17/2020 10/19/2020

 32.55Rugs, Shop Towels 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 76442 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 65.10 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Eaton Corporation

042220

 2,698.74Maintenance Contract 01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 940881140 9/10/2020 10/19/2020

 2,698.74 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

467917

 19,854.80Road Program Engineering 21-450-4255 Engineering 69827-01 9/22/2020 10/19/2020

 6,409.75Maple & Elm Watermain 60-460-4255 Engineering 69827-02 9/22/2020 10/19/2020

 26,264.55 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Euclid Managers

049670

 725.28Short-Term Disability/ Sept and Oct 2020 01-000-2057 Short-Term Disability 09132020 9/13/2020 10/19/2020

 725.28 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Feece Oil

031060

 2,828.77Mid-Grade Fuel 71-000-1340 Gas/Diesel Escrow 3736011 10/6/2020 10/19/2020

 2,828.77 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Fox Metro

029650

 260.00New Inspections- Aug 2020 60-445-4480 New Meters,rprs. & Rplcmts. 09172020 9/17/2020 10/19/2020

 120.00New Inspections- July 2020 60-445-4480 New Meters,rprs. & Rplcmts. 09282020 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 160.00New Inspections- Sept 2020 60-445-4480 New Meters,rprs. & Rplcmts. 10012020 10/1/2020 10/19/2020

 540.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Frost Electric Company, Inc.

021540

 517.50Street Light Repair- Pinecreek Dr 10-445-4661 Street Light Repair/Maint 8293 10/8/2020 10/19/2020

 1,010.00Street Light Repair- Turnberry 10-445-4661 Street Light Repair/Maint 8294 10/8/2020 10/19/2020

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/13/2020 -  4:17 PM) Page 3

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467922
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467922
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576757
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=023610
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=023610
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028353721
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028353720
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=042220
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=042220
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028313426
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467917
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467917
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028364282
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028364283
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=049670
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=049670
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576448
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576673
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029650
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=029650
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028334683
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028334682
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028332131
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=021540
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=021540
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576667
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576668


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

 1,527.50 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Global Water Technology, Inc.

467862

 200.00Water Treatment- VH & PD 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 51251 10/5/2020 10/19/2020

 200.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Harmonic Heating & Air Conditioning

047680

 254.00Furnace Repair- VH 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 38985 10/6/2020 10/19/2020

 254.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Ideal Fence Inc

468031

 1,400.00Fence Repair- 2327 Orr; 2288 Schrader 01-445-4544 Storm Drain Maintenance 20110 10/6/2020 10/19/2020

 1,400.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Illini Power Products Company

467624

 911.11Battery Replacement & Fuel Line 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce SWO026381-37/22/2020 10/19/2020

 911.11 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Illinois Office Of The State Fire Marshall

038770

 300.00Boiler Inspection 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 9634606 10/1/2020 10/19/2020

 300.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative

467637

 36,481.81Health Insurance- PD/ Oct 2020 01-440-4130 Health Insurance 10132020-01 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 8,353.48Health Insurance- Admin/ Oct 2020 01-430-4130 Health Insurance 10132020-02 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 3,434.33Health Insurance- CommDev/ Oct 2020 01-441-4130 Health Insurance 10132020-03 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 12,365.95Health Insurance- PW/ Oct 2020 01-445-4130 Health Insurance 10132020-04 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 8,143.20Health Insurance- Water/ Oct 2020 60-445-4130 Health Insurance 10132020-05 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 1,963.63Health Insurance- Retirees/ Oct 2020 01-000-2055 Payroll Deductions 10132020-06 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 2,245.78Health Insurance- Police Pension/ Oct 2020 01-000-2055 Payroll Deductions 10132020-07 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 102.64Life Insurance- PD/ Oct 2020 01-440-4135 Life Insurance 10132020-08 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 34.32Life Insurance- PW/ Oct 2020 01-445-4135 Life Insurance 10132020-09 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 18.72Life Insurance- Admin/ Oct 2020 01-430-4135 Life Insurance 10132020-10 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 12.48Life Insurance- CommDev/ Oct 2020 01-441-4135 Life Insurance 10132020-11 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 15.60Life Insurance- Water/ Oct 2020 60-445-4135 Life Insurance 10132020-12 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 368.82Voluntary Life/ Oct 2020 01-000-2052 Voluntary Life Insurance 10132020-13 10/13/2020 10/19/2020

 73,540.76 *Vendor TotalTotal:

John Thomas Company

468030

 4,722.50Traffic Counting Devices 71-430-4870 Equipment 15694 9/25/2020 10/19/2020

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/13/2020 -  4:17 PM) Page 4

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467862
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467862
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576660
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047680
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047680
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576672
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468031
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468031
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576822
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467624
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467624
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576662
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038770
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038770
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576748
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467637
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467637
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577351
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577352
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577353
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577354
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577355
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577356
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577357
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577358
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577359
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577362
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577363
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577364
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028577365
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=468030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028545106


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

 4,722.50 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Kane County Recorder

010600

 52.00Recording Fee- Lein Release 01-441-4506 Publishing 09302020 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 52.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Kendall County Concrete

047060

 183.50Concrete 01-445-4543 Sidewalks Rpr & Mtce 50086 9/18/2020 10/19/2020

 183.50 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Konica Minolta

024860

 29.39Copier Maintenance 01-440-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 9007090765 10/1/2020 10/19/2020

 7.50AP Printer Maint 8/21 - 9/20 01-430-4411 Office Expenses 9007140508 10/23/2020 10/19/2020

 7.50AP Printer Maint 9/21 - 10/20 01-430-4411 Office Expenses 9007140510 10/23/2020 10/19/2020

 44.39 *Vendor TotalTotal:

L. W. Meyer & Son, Inc.

022050

 578.00Cordless Drill Kits (2) 60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 940180 9/21/2020 10/19/2020

 578.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Menards

016070

 182.45Supplies For Christmas Decor 01-490-4761 Beautification Committee 50562 9/25/2020 10/19/2020

 66.97Flash Lights 01-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 50774-01 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 25.98Trash Bags 01-445-4521 Mosquito Control 50774-02 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 592.97Supplies For Christmas Decor 01-490-4761 Beautification Committee 50774-03 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 26.62Rebar, Concrete 01-445-4544 Storm Drain Maintenance 50790 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 222.92Supplies For Christmas Decor 01-490-4761 Beautification Committee 50897 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 1,079.82Carpet For PW 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 50984 10/1/2020 10/19/2020

 147.14Blade, Waferboard 01-445-4543 Sidewalks Rpr & Mtce 50997 10/1/2020 10/19/2020

 59.96Table, Ext. Cord 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 51056 10/2/2020 10/19/2020

 139.88Christmas Lights 01-490-4761 Beautification Committee 51222-01 9/5/2020 10/19/2020

 63.18Cove Bass, Glue, Switch Plate 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 51222-02 9/5/2020 10/19/2020

 84.95Vacuum, Floor Mats 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 51299-01 10/6/2020 10/19/2020

 59.88Christmas Lights 01-490-4761 Beautification Committee 51299-02 10/6/2020 10/19/2020

 99.83Lights, Grate 01-490-4761 Beautification Committee 51452 10/8/2020 10/19/2020

 2,852.55 *Vendor TotalTotal:

METRONET

467874

 761.68Phone, Internet- Admin/ Sept 2020 01-430-4652 Phones and Connectivity 09242020-01 9/24/2020 10/19/2020

 607.74Phone, Internet- PW/ Sept 2020 01-445-4652 Phones and Connectivity 09242020-02 9/24/2020 10/19/2020

 709.00Phone, Internet- Water/ Sept 2020 60-445-4652 Phones and Connectivity 09242020-03 9/24/2020 10/19/2020

 560.42Phone, Internet- CommDev/ Sept 2020 01-441-4652 Phones and Connectivity 09242020-04 9/24/2020 10/19/2020

 1,747.24Phone, Internet- PD/ Sept 2020 01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity 09242020-05 9/24/2020 10/19/2020

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/13/2020 -  4:17 PM) Page 5

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=010600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576604
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028358419
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024860
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=024860
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028313429
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028328268
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028328267
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=022050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=022050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028332814
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=016070
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=016070
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028545109
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028339883
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028339884
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028339885
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028339887
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028339886
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028348768
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028348767
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576640
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576638
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576639
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576625
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576626
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576629
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467874
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467874
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028329406
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028329407
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028329408
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028329409
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028329410


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

 4,386.08 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Miner Electronics Corporation

3383

 405.00Vehicle Repair 01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 270806 9/21/2020 10/19/2020

 405.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

North Aurora NAPA, Inc.

038730

 14.98Sta-Bil Fuel Cond 01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies 342825 1/24/2020 10/19/2020

 220.00Battery Tester 01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies 347327 3/30/2020 10/19/2020

 132.51Masks, Sanitizer- COVID 01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies 350425 5/11/2020 10/19/2020

 54.47Fuel Treatment 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 352798 6/9/2020 10/19/2020

 328.96Brake Caliper 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 353565 6/17/2020 10/19/2020

 49.56PW Tools 01-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 360544 9/8/2020 10/19/2020

 140.66Squad Parts- Squad #73 01-440-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 361300 9/16/2020 10/19/2020

 237.27Relay, Starter 01-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 361658 9/21/2020 10/19/2020

 4.70Pump Starter Rope 60-445-4568 Watermain Rprs. & Rplcmts. 362328-01 9/29/2020 10/19/2020

 63.84Grease 01-445-4510 Equipment/IT Maint 362328-02 9/29/2020 10/19/2020

 13.58Vehicle Door Handle- Truck #183 60-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint 362422 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 1,260.53 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Office Depot

039370

 16.74Office Supplies 01-430-4411 Office Expenses 125512474001-019/22/2020 10/19/2020

 16.75Office Supplies 01-445-4411 Office Expenses 125512474001-029/22/2020 10/19/2020

 32.92Office Supplies 60-445-4411 Office Expenses 125512474001-039/22/2020 10/19/2020

 72.44Office Supplies 01-441-4411 Office Expenses 125512474001-049/22/2020 10/19/2020

 13.87Office Supplies 01-430-4411 Office Expenses 127038248001-019/29/2020 10/19/2020

 13.88Office Supplies 01-445-4411 Office Expenses 127038248001-029/29/2020 10/19/2020

 13.88Office Supplies 60-445-4411 Office Expenses 127038248001-039/29/2020 10/19/2020

 13.88Office Supplies 01-441-4411 Office Expenses 127038248001-049/29/2020 10/19/2020

 1.84Office Supplies 01-430-4411 Office Expenses 127045995001-019/30/2020 10/19/2020

 1.85Office Supplies 01-445-4411 Office Expenses 127045995001-029/30/2020 10/19/2020

 1.85Office Supplies 60-445-4411 Office Expenses 127045995001-039/30/2020 10/19/2020

 1.85Office Supplies 01-441-4411 Office Expenses 127045995001-049/30/2020 10/19/2020

 201.75 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Oxie Valley Electric Supply, Inc.

048340

 45.65Light Bulbs 10-445-4661 Street Light Repair/Maint 14725 9/22/2020 10/19/2020

 45.65 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Paddock Publications, Inc.

026910

 80.50Public Hearing Legal Notice- CommDev 90-000-E142 Hardware Restaurant 157229 9/19/2020 10/19/2020

 80.50 *Vendor TotalTotal:

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/13/2020 -  4:17 PM) Page 6

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3383
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3383
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028313411
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=038730
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028347379
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028347378
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028345386
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028347381
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028347380
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028358056
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028331741
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028358055
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576621
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576622
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576412
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039370
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028330112
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028330113
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028330114
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028330115
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028325126
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028325127
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028325128
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028325129
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028325122
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028325123
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028325124
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028325125
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=048340
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576754
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=026910
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=026910
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576244


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

PDC Laboratories, Inc.

031940

 280.00Radium Testing 60-445-4562 Testing (water) I9435011 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 280.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Physicians Immediate Care, North Chicago LLC

049540

 43.00Engineer Drug Screen 01-445-4799 Misc. Expenditures 4176589-01 10/5/2020 10/19/2020

 238.00COVID/ Drug Screen- New Employee 01-440-4799 Misc. 4176589-02 10/5/2020 10/19/2020

 281.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Russo Power Equipment Inc.

036290

 94.99Grass Seed 01-445-4543 Sidewalks Rpr & Mtce SPI10302233 6/22/2020 10/19/2020

 64.38Chain Loop 01-445-4870 Equipment SPI10333236 7/14/2020 10/19/2020

 64.96Plant Food For Flowers 01-490-4761 Beautification Committee SPI10333291-017/14/2020 10/19/2020

 78.99Helmet System 01-445-4870 Equipment SPI10333291-027/14/2020 10/19/2020

 27.99Rewind Starter 01-445-4511 Vehicle Repair and Maint SPI10343788 7/21/2020 10/19/2020

 94.99Grass Seed 01-445-4543 Sidewalks Rpr & Mtce SPI10422541 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 426.30 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Sebert Landscaping

032840

 964.00SSA4 Mowing 17-004-4533 Maintenance 207330-01 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 888.00SSA8 Mowing 17-008-4533 Maintenance 207330-02 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 276.00SSA9 Mowing 17-009-4533 Maintenance 207330-03 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 23.88SSA11 Mowing 17-011-4533 Maintenance 207330-04 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 3,409.99Public Mowing 01-445-4531 Grass Cutting 207330-05 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 5,561.87 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Sherwin-Williams

467715

 6.61Hydrant Paint Brush 60-445-4563 Fire Hydrant Repair/maint 5079-7 10/4/2020 10/19/2020

 283.98Office Painting- PW Garage 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 7881-4 10/2/2020 10/19/2020

 290.59 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Sunbelt Rentals, Inc.

043800

 1,409.75Trencher 01-445-4530 Public Grounds/Parks Maint 105714141-00019/24/2020 10/19/2020

 1,409.75 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Technology Management Rev Fund

007390

 723.32IWIN 01-440-4652 Phones and Connectivity T2105122 9/22/2020 10/19/2020

 723.32 *Vendor TotalTotal:

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/13/2020 -  4:17 PM) Page 7

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031940
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=031940
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028335442
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=049540
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=049540
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028571695
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028571696
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=036290
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=036290
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576737
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576738
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576739
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576740
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576736
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028572227
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032840
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=032840
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028337289
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028337290
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028337291
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028337292
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028337293
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467715
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467715
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576415
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576657
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=043800
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=043800
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028338180
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=007390
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=007390
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028571668


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

Third Millennium Assoc. , Inc.

033470

 509.06Late Final Bills- Sept 2020 60-445-4507 Printing 25344 9/30/2020 10/19/2020

 509.06 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Thom Jungels

039460

 910.00Plumbing Inspections (26) 01-441-4276 Inspection Services 10052020 10/5/2020 10/19/2020

 910.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Thomas J. Doggett

051390

 420.00Department Photos- PD 01-440-4799 Misc. 10062020 10/6/2020 10/19/2020

 420.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Traffic Control & Protection

021520

 153.95Stop & Speed Limit Sign 01-445-4545 Traffic Signs & Signals 105358 10/8/2020 10/19/2020

 153.95 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Van's Lock & Key Service, Inc.

005070

 11.50VH Keys (2) 01-445-4520 Public Buildings Rpr & Mtce 89986 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 11.50 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Vessel, Inc.

041490

 160.00Dirt 01-445-4540 Streets & Alleys Rpr & Mtce 20-2177 9/28/2020 10/19/2020

 160.00 *Vendor TotalTotal:

WBK Engineering, LLC

467655

 1,134.26Randall Crossing Mixed Use Bldg 90-000-E056 Randall Crossing Mixed Use 21571 10/6/2020 10/19/2020

 1,134.26 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Weldstar Company

014090

 160.08Air Tank Rental 60-445-4565 Water Well Rpr & Mtce 01895654 9/24/2020 10/19/2020

 160.08 *Vendor TotalTotal:

Winzer Corporation

047560

 119.40Sanitizer- COVID 01-445-4421 Custodial Supplies 6715759 9/29/2020 10/19/2020

 119.40 *Vendor TotalTotal:

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/13/2020 -  4:17 PM) Page 8

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033470
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=033470
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028321833
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039460
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=039460
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028335787
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=051390
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=051390
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028571666
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=021520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=021520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576665
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=005070
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=005070
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028357569
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041490
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=041490
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576744
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467655
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=467655
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028576825
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014090
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=014090
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028332475
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047560
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=047560
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0028351216


Invoice # Inv DateAmount Pmt DateDescription Account Acct Name

Report Total:  155,112.09

AP-To Be Paid Proof List (10/13/2020 -  4:17 PM) Page 9



 
Memorandum 
 
To:   Village President and Village Board of Trustees   

Cc:      Steve Bosco, Village Administrator  

From: Natalie Stevens, Executive Assistant 

Date:  October 13, 2020 

Re:      Share & Care Halloween Special Event Permit Application 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Attached is a Special Event Registration form submitted by Suzanne Starble on behalf 
of Share & Care Learning Center seeking a special events permit from the Village of 
North Aurora. 
 
The event, a Halloween parade, will take place on Friday, October 30, from 9:30 a.m. 
to 10:30 a.m. from John Street to Marvo Street and ending with an event in the 
Village-owned parking lot on Marvo Street.  
 
The special events permit application and all required paperwork has been 
submitted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











Village of North Aurora 

Memorandum 
 

 
 

To: 

 
President and Board of Trustees 

 

From: 

 

CC: 

 
Bill Hannah, Finance Director 
 
Steve Bosco, Village Administrator 

 

Date: 

 
October 13, 2020 

 

RE: 

 
Employee Vacation Time Accrual Balances 

 

 
Background 

One of the items that staff prepares annually for the audit is the recording of the value of accrued 
time off that employees have at the end of the fiscal year that the Village is required to pay out if 
that employee were to leave employment with the Village. This is calculated by taking the 
employee’s current hourly rate of pay, and multiplying it by the hours of applicable leave time 
that the employee has as of May 31st, the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As stated above, the value of the time recorded only includes hours that that the Village would be 
required to pay out to the employee when that employee retires or leaves employment with the 
Village. In this case this would only include vacation time, compensatory time and holiday time 
(for police union employees only).  Since the Village does not pay out accrued sick time to 
employees upon separation, there is therefore no liability to accrue as of May 31st. 
 
The updated number of hours of accrued time off that the Village had a liability to potentially 
payout as of May 31, 2020 is listed as follows: 
 

 Hours Accrued Value of Time 

Vacation Leave 7,432 $340,856 

Compensatory Leave 2,270 $88,168 

Holiday Leave (Police) 1,829 $77,439 

 
The value of all accrued leave time above as of May 31, 2020 was an increase of about $87,540 
over the prior year, a larger than normal annual increase in accumulated leave time. 
 
Vacation Leave Balances 

Employees accrue and earn vacation time twice a month.  Employees are allowed to earn 
vacation time up to a certain maximum amount. This maximum is the equivalent to their annual 
accrual plus one week. For example, an employee that earns three (3) weeks of vacation time 
annually over the course of the year may accumulate up to four (4) weeks total to use. In some 
situations, this can be temporarily increased by an additional week with the approval of the 
Village Administrator. 



 
It was noted at the time of calculating the above annual accruals that several employees at the 
Police Department had accumulated more vacation time than current policy provides. After 
discussion, it was determined that several issues contributed to the increase in accumulated time. 
These included the necessity of having a critical number of employees working in order to 
account for employees unable to work due to workers’ comp incidents, employees off for 
extended durations for non-work related reasons, the cancellation of planned vacations due to the 
current COVID pandemic and general need for employees to be currently working in response to 
the current pandemic issues. 
 
Current Payout of Vacation Time Policy 

One of the policies the Village has had in place for the last five (5) years is the option for certain 
employees to have the Village “buy back” some of their vacation time. The program applies only 
to non-union employees, and was increased from a maximum of 40 hours to a maximum of 60 
hours last year. Employee decisions are made in November and the vacation time hours are paid 
out in December. This program was adopted in order to respond to periods of time where 
employees could not take their accumulated vacation time for various reasons, partially as 
described above, or for other reasons. The program has been well received and appreciated by 
employees. 
 
Discussion of Possible Increase in Vacation Buy-Back for 2020 

In discussing the issue of the increase in the accumulated time off and the current balances of 
some employees, one of the points that was brought up was that the ongoing pandemic could 
carry the accumulated time issue well into next year. Since the Village has had a vacation buy 
back policy in place since 2015 as described above, it was thought that the program could be 
expanded for only this year to include all full-time employees (union as well as non-union) and 
have the maximum buyout increased to 80 hours. This would enable the Village to have more 
staff available to respond to the current needs of the Village (due to COVID and other issues), 
alleviate a portion of the total hours and value of accumulated time employees are currently 
carrying, minimize the potential operational impacts of past due and overlapping vacation 
requests and ensure that all employees are able to be within the normal vacation maximum 
accruals. If at the time of the buyout some employees need to have more than 80 hours cashed 
out in order to be within the current policy maximums, that will be looked at on an individual 
basis. 
 
Government Operations Committee Discussion 

This item was discussed at the October 5, 2020 Government Operations Committee. The 
Committee recommended a Resolution temporarily for one-year expanding the scope of the 
Village’s annual vacation buy-back program be considered for approval at the October 19, 2020 
Village Board meeting.   



Resolution No. _________________________ 

Resolution to Authorize Temporary Modifications to the Village’s Vacation 

Buyback Policy in the Human Resources Manual 

 
 WHEREAS, the Village of North Aurora adopted a revised Human Resources 
Manual on November 2, 2015 and was subsequently modified several times by the 
Village Board and was last amended on November 18, 2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 5.4 of the Human Resources Manual currently provides for 
an annual “vacation buy back option” for non-union employees where the Village will 
buy back up to sixty (60) hours of vacation time from eligible full-time employees; and 
 

WHEREAS, employee vacation leave balances have increased over the last year 
in some areas due to a variety of issues including staffing issues due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, operational necessity, workers’ comp or other employee leave issues and such 
balances are near or over the maximum allowed under Village policy for both union and 
non-union employees; and 
 

WHEREAS, due to the ongoing pandemic, operational staffing needs and other 
issues, it had been determined that it is in the best interest of the Village to allow for an 
expanded vacation leave buy back option for all full-time employees of up to eighty (80) 
hours, both union and nonunion, only for calendar year 2020; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and the Board of 
Trustees as follows: 
 

1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as the material findings of the 
President and the Board of Trustees. 

 
2. The Village staff is authorized to implement an expanded vacation leave buyback 

program for all full-time, eligible employees of up to 80 hours for calendar year 
2020 only. 
 

3. The vacation buy back program will be automatic for certain employees in order 
to ensure that their vacation leave accrual totals will then be under the maximum 
amount provided for by Village policy or other agreement after the buyback, and 
in some cases may need to exceed the temporary, maximum 80 hour buyback 
amount.  

 
4. This Resolution shall take immediate full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval. 
 
Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
this _____ day of ___________, 2020, A.D. 
 
 
Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois 
this _____ day of ___________, 2020, A.D. 



 
 Mark Guethle  _________  Mark Carroll  _________ 
 
 Mark Gaffino  _________  Michael Lowery _________ 
 
 Tao Martinez  _________  Laura Curtis  _________ 
 
 
Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of trustees of the Village of North 
Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this _______ day of _________________, 2020 A.D. 
    
      ___________________________________ 
      Village President Dale Berman 
ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
Village Clerk 



      
 
 
Memorandum 
To:         Dale Berman, Village President & Board of Trustees 

Cc:     Steven Bosco, Village Administrator  

From:  John Laskowski, Public Works Director  

Date:  October 12, 2020 

Re:         2021 Road Program Professional Engineering Services Agreement 

 
At the September 21, 2020 Services Committee meeting, Staff presented the proposed roads 
for the 2021 annual road maintenance program.  The roads selected are in the Pinecreek 
Subdivision on the east side of town, as seen in the table below.  The total length of streets 
proposed is approximately 2.75 miles.  The engineering services required to complete the 
design, materials inspection, and construction inspection of the annual road program will be 
funded through the Capital Fund. The construction of the improvements will be funded 
through both the Capital Fund and the Motor Fuel Tax Fund (MFT). 
 
1 Andrew Ct Andrew Ln end of cul-de-sac 
2 Andrew Ln Pinecreek Dr Hickory St 
3 Bede Cir Pinecreek Dr Lloyd Ln 
4 Bede Ct Bede Circle end of cul-de-sac 
5 Bellar Ct Hammer Lane end of cul-de-sac 
6 Carrie Ct Bede Circle end of cul-de-sac 
7 Hammer Ln Pinecreek Dr end of cul-de-sac 
8 Hammer Ln Doral Ln Doral Ln 
9 Hickory Ct Andrew Ln end of cul-de-sac 
10 Holly Ct Pinecreek Dr end of cul-de-sac 
11 Jessica Ct Pinecreek Dr end of cul-de-sac 
12 Lindsay Cir Terry Ln Pinecreek Dr 
13 Lloyd Ln Pinehcreek Dr Carrie Ct 
14 Oberweis Ave Banbury Rd Hammer Ln 
15 Pinehurst Ct Pinehurst Dr end of cul-de-sac 
16 Pinehurst Dr Wingfoot Dr Pinecreek Dr 
17 Sharon Ct Sharon Lane end of cul-de-sac 
18 Sharon Ln Pinecreek Dr Banbury Rd 
19 Terry Ln Pinecreek Dr Lindsay Cr 

 



The Village will be using MFT funding for construction, which is a change from past years, 
and adds a level of complexity to the project because the Village must submit its engineering 
plans and specifications to IDOT for review. This requires additional engineering efforts to 
meet the State standards that otherwise would not be required and thus the engineering 
services are expected to cost more.  However, even when taking into consideration this 
expected cost increase, the proposal for engineering services prepared by EEI is reasonable 
when compared to last year’s agreement. 
 
The engineering costs for the 2020 road program were $149,681 for 1.85 miles of roadway 
and the construction costs were $1.16M. The engineering costs were 12.9% of the 
construction costs.  The construction costs were approximately $118.75 per linear foot.  
  
For the 2021 project, the length is approximately 2.75 miles of roads.  Using last year’s cost 
per linear foot of $118.75 linear foot and a length of 2.75 miles would produce an estimate 
of $1.72M. However, with the substantial amount of curb repairs needed on Lindsay Circle 
and Holly Court, Staff is estimating this cost could increase to $1.9M. The total cost proposed 
by EEI for engineering services in 2021 is $229,715, and the corresponding percentages 
would range between 12.1% and 13.3% when using an estimate of range of $1.7M-$1.9M.  
Based on this comparison the estimated range aligns well with last year’s engineering costs 
of 12.9%.  
 
The engineering services contract prepared by EEI has been separated into two components, 
a design component and a construction inspection component.  The design component is 
not to exceed contract in the amount of $90,954. The construction inspection is estimated at 
$120,376.  This amount could vary depending on the length of the actual contract.  Another 
caveat depends on how IDOT defines our project. If they determine “design plans” are not 
required the engineering services contract could be reduced by approximately $25,000, and 
instead of plans EEI would produce exhibits. 
 
After reviewing the professional services agreement, considering the additional engineering 
that may have to be performed as a result of submitting the project to IDOT for review, and 
comparing this agreement to last year’s, it is the Staff recommendation to approve the 
agreement with EEI in the amount of $229,715. 
 
 
 





































Village of North Aurora 

Memorandum 
 

 
 

To: 

 
President and Village Board of Trustees 

 

From: 

 
Bill Hannah, Finance Director/Treasurer 

 

Date: 

 
October 13, 2020 

 

CC: 

 
Steven Bosco, Village Administrator 

 

RE: 

 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Kane County for CARES Funding 

  
As the Board is aware, Kane County received funding from the federal government 
through the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) after the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”) was signed into law on March 27, 2020. Per 
the CARES Act, Kane County qualified for direct funding due to it being a unit of local 
government with an excess of 500,000 residents. 
 
Kane County, as allowed by the CARES Act and US Treasury guidance, made available 
a portion of this funding to other units of government in Kane County. The Village of 
North Aurora was notified on August 13, 2020 that it was allocated $1,062,765 from the 
County’s funding allocation. Allocations were made on a per capita basis. 
 
After the County made available the necessary forms and updated its guidance on eligible 
expenditures during the months of August and September, the Village submitted an 
application for this funding on September 10, 2020. The eligible expenditures submitted 
for reimbursement included salaries and benefits of sworn police officers from March 1st 
through August 31st as well as some personnel costs associated with public works 
laborers that needed to shelter in place. The total amount of these eligible costs totaled 
$2,213,122.84. This was significantly more that the amount of funds that were allocated 
to the Village. 
 
On Friday, October 9th the County provided indication that the Village’s application for 
CARES funding was accepted, and forwarded the attached IGA to the Village for 
approval. Once the Village approves the IGA it will be sent on to the County and at this 
time it is expected that the full $1,062,765 will be disbursed to the Village in the near 
future. 
 
 
 
 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 1 of 3 Pages 

  
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

Resolution No. ___________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________  

 

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT CARES ACT FUNDS FROM KANE COUNTY 

___________________________________________________________________________________  

 

 

 

Adopted by the 

Board of Trustees and President 

of the Village of North Aurora 

this ____ day of __________, 2020 

 

 

 

Published in Pamphlet Form 

by authority of the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, 

this ____ day of __________, 2020 

by ________________________________. 

 

 

 

 

Signed _____________________________________ 

 

 
 

 

 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 2 of 3 Pages 

 
RESOLUTION NO._________________________ 

 
 A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT CARES ACT FUNDS FROM KANE COUNTY 
 

WHEREAS, Kane County received funding from the federal government through the 
Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) after the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the 
“CARES Act”) was signed into law on March 27, 2020, and Kane County is making a portion of the 
CARES ACT funding available to other units of government in Kane County on a per capita basis, 
including the amount of $1,062,765 the Village of North Aurora (the “CARES Act Funds”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of North have determined 
that the best interests of the citizens and businesses in North Aurora will be served by accepting the 
funds that are being made available by Kane County.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of the 
Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois, as follows: 

 
1. The recitals set forth above are adopted and incorporated herein as the material and 

significant findings of the President and the Board of Trustees as if fully stated herein. 
 
2. The President and Board of Trustees hereby approve acceptance of the CARES Act Funds 

from Kane County pursuant to the terms of the intergovernmental agreement in the form attached 
hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit “A” (the “IGA”), and the Village Administrator, or 
his designee, is hereby authorized and directed to sign and return the IGA to Kane County, to take 
whatever other actions are necessary to obtain the funds and to comply with the terms and conditions 
the IGA and limitations on those funds as provided in the CARES Act.  

 
3. This Resolution shall take immediate force and effect from and after its passage and approval 

as provided by law. 
 
 Presented to the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
____ day of ___________, 2020 A.D. 
 
 Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of North Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this 
____ day of ___________, 2020 A.D. 

 
Mark Carroll   _________  Laura Curtis   _________ 
 
Mark Gaffino  _________  Mark Guethle  _________ 
 
Michael Lowery _________  Tao Martinez  _________ 

 
 Approved and signed by me as President of the Board of Trustees of the Village of North 
Aurora, Kane County, Illinois this ____ day of __________, 2020 A.D. 

        ______________________________________ 
        Dale Berman, Village President 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 

Deputy Village Clerk 



     VILLAGE OF NORTH AURORA 

 
 Page 3 of 3 Pages 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECIPIENTAGREEMENT FOR 

CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUNDS 

 
 



1  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECIPIENTAGREEMENT FOR 
CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUNDS 

 
Between COUNTY OF KANE, ILLINOIS and Village of North Aurora  (Recipient) 

 
THIS AGREEMENT entered this       day of October, 2020, by and between the County of Kane, 
Illinois, a body politic and corporate of the State of Illinois, (herein called “Kane County”), and Village 
of North Aurora (herein called “Recipient”) governs disbursement of Coronavirus Relief Funds by Kane 
County to Recipient. Kane County and Recipient shall sometimes be referred to herein individually as 
the “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States issued a Proclamation on Declaring 
a National Public Health Emergency as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak; and 

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2020, the President of the United States signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, 
Relief, and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the CARES Act established the Coronavirus Relief Fund (“CRF”), which provides aid to 
certain eligible local governments to address necessary expenditures due to the COVID-19 Public Health 
Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, Kane County qualified as an eligible local government and received CRF funding from the 
U.S Department of Treasury as it is a unit of local government with an excess of 500,000 residents; and 

WHEREAS, federal guidance issued by the U.S. Department of Treasury indicates that a unit of local 
government may transfer a portion of its CRF funding to a smaller unit of local government provided that 
such transfer qualifies as a “necessary expenditure” to the Public Health Emergency and meets the criteria 
of Section 601 (d) of the Social Security Act as added by Section 5001 of the CARES Act; and 

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Illinois Constitution and the Illinois Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.) and other applicable law permit and encourage units of local 
government to cooperate with and support each other in the exercise of their authority and the 
performance of their responsibilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act authorizes units of local government to 
combine, transfer or jointly exercise any power, privilege, function, or authority which either of them 
may exercise, and to enter into agreements for the performance of governmental services, activities, or 
undertakings, and 

WHEREAS, Kane County acknowledges that there are local municipalities and other entities within 
Kane County that did not directly receive a portion of CRF and Kane County, through the spirit of 
intergovernmental cooperation, desires to provide a portion of its CRF funding to aid such local 
municipalities and other entities in addressing the impacts of the COVID-19 Public Health Emergency; 
and 

WHEREAS, much uncertainty remains regarding future costs the County and local municipalities will 
be forced to bear related to the coronavirus emergency, and 

WHEREAS, much uncertainty exists as to the potential for future allocations of federal or state monies 
to defray those future costs, and  



2  

WHEREAS, this agreement is intended to promote the most efficient distribution of resources which 
have been made available to the State of Illinois and the County of Kane to benefit the citizens of Kane 
County, and 

WHEREAS, Section 601(d) of the Social Security Act, as added by section 5001 of the CARES Act 
requires that units of local government use the funds received to cover only those costs that (1) are 
necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the COVID–19; (2) 
were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020, (the date of enactment 
of the CARES Act) for the state or local government; and (3) were incurred during the period that begins 
on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, in order to reimburse Recipient for funds to pay necessary expenditures which it has 
incurred due to the COVID-19 public health emergency, the Parties have agreed that Kane County, in its 
sole and absolute discretion, may reimburse Recipient for eligible expenses as provided herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties mutually agree as follows: 
 

I. AGREEMENT TERM & SURVIVAL OF TERMS 

A.  This Agreement shall become effective on the date of execution, and end on December 30, 2020 
(the “Initial Term”).  With regard to all dates and time periods set forth, or referred to, in this 
Agreement, time is of the essence, and Recipient acknowledges it shall comply with its 
obligations within the required timeframe. 

B. This Agreement may be extended beyond the Initial Term only upon the written approval of both 
Parties; provided, however, that all terms and conditions of this Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect unless this Agreement is specifically amended. 

C. Kane County, in its sole and absolute discretion, may terminate this Agreement at any time. 
D. Those terms relating to the parties’ obligations to maintain records and provide records, the 

Recipient’s indemnification of Kane County, representations and warrants of the Recipient as to 
Kane County population count, and all other representations and warrants of the Recipient shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement, including, but not limited to surviving the time period 
for conducting any audit(s) or any time periods for concluding other residual responsibilities of 
Kane County or the Recipient. 

II. ACTIVITIES & ELIGIBLE EXPENSES 

A. Activities 

Recipient shall be responsible for administering all COVID-19 response activities in a manner 
satisfactory to Kane County and consistent with any standards required as a condition of providing 
these funds. Allowable activities must be directly tied to response and recovery efforts related to 
COVID-19 and must be allowable pursuant to the CRF requirements. 

 

B. Eligible Expenses 

Kane County, in its sole and absolute discretion, may reimburse and/or provide funding to Recipient 
for “Eligible Expenses” as described on Attachment A of this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything 
herein to the contrary, “Eligible Expenses” shall not include lost revenue. Failure of Recipient to 



3  

comply with the provisions of this Agreement, including non-compliance with 2 C.F.R. 200, may 
result in expenses being disallowed, withholding of federal funds, and/or termination of this 
Agreement. 

III. NOTICES 
A. Legal Notices  

Legal notices to Kane County as required by this Agreement shall be delivered in writing, and 
addressed to Kane County as set forth below. Legal notices to Recipient as required by this 
Agreement shall be in writing, and addressed to Recipient as set forth below. All such legal notices 
shall also be deemed duly given if personally delivered, or if deposited in the Unites States mail, 
registered or certified return receipt requested. 

 
KANE COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
ATTN: CIVIL DIVISION 
RE: CRF ALLOCATION LEGAL NOTICES 
100 S. THIRD STREET, 4th FLOOR 
GENEVA, IL 60134 
 
Name of Recipient: __________________________________ 
 
Address: ___________________________________________ 
    ___________________________________________ 
   ___________________________________________ 

         
 

B. Communications and Notices, Other than Legal Notices 
Other than legal notices, all other communications and notices may be sent between the parties via 
email or U.S. Mail, as addressed below: 
 
Kane County Coronavirus Relief Fund Program Manager  
Attn: Faviola Guzman 
100 S. Third Street, 4th Floor 
Geneva, IL 60134 
crf@co.kane.il.us 
 
 
 
 
 



4  

Recipient Information for Notices, other than Legal Notices, and all other Communications: 
 
Name of Recipient: __________________________________ 
 
Address: ___________________________________________ 
    ___________________________________________ 
   ___________________________________________ 

Email:   
  
 

IV. TERMS & CONDITIONS 

The following requirements are applicable to all activities undertaken with CRF funds. The County, by 
and through departments or Third-Party Consultant hired by the State’s Attorney’s Office, shall process 
requests for reimbursement received subject to the requirements set forth herein. 

A. Compliance with State and Local Requirements 

Recipient acknowledges that this Agreement requires compliance with the regulations of the State of 
Illinois and with all applicable state and local orders, laws, regulations, rules, policies, and 
certifications governing any activities undertaken during the performance of this Agreement. 

B. Compliance with Federal Requirements 

Recipient acknowledges that Eligible Expenses reimbursed by Kane County to Recipient are not 
considered to be grants but are “other financial assistance” under 2 C.F.R. 200.40. This Agreement 
requires compliance with certain provisions of Title 2 C.F.R. 200 – Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Recipient agrees to 
comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and policies governing the funds provided under 
this Agreement. Recipient further agrees to utilize available funds under this Agreement to 
supplement rather than supplant funds otherwise available. 

During the performance of this Agreement, the Recipient shall comply with all applicable federal 
laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, the following: 

• Fund payments are considered to be federal financial assistance subject to the Single Audit 
Act (31 U.S.C. 7501-7507). 

• Recipients are subject to a single audit or program specific audit pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 
200.501(a) when Recipient spends $750,000 or more in federal awards during their fiscal 
year. 

• Fund payments are subject to 2 C.F.R. 200.303 regarding internal controls. 

• Fund payments are subject to 2 C.F.R. 200.330 through 200.332 regarding Recipient 
monitoring and management. 

• Fund payments are subject to Subpart F regarding audit requirements. 

 



5  

With respect to any conflict between such federal requirements and the terms of this Agreement 
and/or the provisions of state law and except as otherwise required under federal law or regulation, 
the more stringent requirement shall control. 

C. Hold Harmless 

Recipient shall hold harmless, release, and defend Kane County from any and all claims, actions, 
suits, charges and judgments whatsoever that arise out of the Recipient’s performance or 
nonperformance of the services or subject matter called for in this Agreement.  Recipient agrees to 
hold Kane County harmless for any evaluation and/or advice which Kane County provided in its 
application and review process as to whether requested reimbursement(s) are/were permissible uses 
of CRF. 

D. Indemnification 

Recipient shall indemnify Kane County, its officers, agents, employees, and the federal awarding 
agency, from any claim, liability, loss, injury or damage arising out of, or in connection with, 
performance of this Agreement by Recipient and/or its agents, employees or sub-contractors, 
excepting only loss, injury or damage determined to be solely caused by the gross negligence or 
willful misconduct of personnel employed by Kane County. It is the intent of the Parties to this 
Agreement to provide the broadest possible indemnification for Kane County.  This indemnification 
shall include, but is not limited to, instances where Kane County relied upon the certification of the 
Recipient that such expenses which the Recipient sought to have reimbursed from CRF were eligible, 
and met all requirements for reimbursement, but where the Office of the Inspector General, or any 
other federal person, official, or agency which is charged with the auditing and review of 
expenditures of CRF determines that such expenses and/or reimbursement was not permitted under 
the CARES Act, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, reimburse, and make whole Kane County for 
any funds which the government of the United States or its agencies seeks to, or does, recoup or 
collect in any manner, through litigation, by withholding other federal funds owed to Kane County, 
or otherwise.  The Recipient further agrees to indemnify, reimburse, or make whole Kane County 
for any penalties associated with the federal government seeking to recoup the expended CRF which 
the County disbursed to the Recipient, including interest, attorney’s fees, or any penalty provided by 
law. Recipient shall reimburse Kane County for all costs, attorneys' fees, expenses and liabilities 
incurred with respect to any litigation in which Recipient is obligated to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless Kane County under this Agreement. Recipient shall also reimburse Kane County for all 
costs, expenses, and liabilities, including but not limited to, attorney’s fees, and/or auditor/auditing 
fees, as a result of any challenge to the eligibility of reimbursements to Recipient by the federal 
government. 

E. Misrepresentations & Noncompliance 

Recipient hereby asserts, certifies and reaffirms that all representations and other information 
contained in Recipient’s Kane County Unit of Government Application for Coronavirus Relief  
Funds (see Section V.J.(1)),,  subsequent requests for reimbursement or any agreed-upon budget 
modifications are true, correct and complete, to the best of Recipient’s knowledge.  Recipient 
acknowledges that all such representations and information have been relied on by Kane County to 
provide the funding under this Agreement. 

 



6  

Recipient shall promptly notify Kane County, in writing, of the occurrence of any event or any 
material change in circumstances which would make any of Recipient representation(s) or 
information untrue or incorrect or otherwise impair Recipient’s ability to fulfill Recipient’s 
obligations under this Agreement. 

F. Workers’ Compensation 

Recipient shall provide Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage for all of its employees involved 
in the performance of this Agreement. 

G. Insurance 

Recipient shall carry sufficient insurance coverage to protect any funds provided to Recipient under 
this Agreement from loss due to theft, fraud and/or undue physical damage. Recipients that are 
self-insured shall maintain excess coverage over and above its self-insured retention limits. 
H. Amendments 

This Agreement may be amended at any time only by a written instrument signed by both Parties. 
Such amendments shall not invalidate this Agreement, nor relieve or release either Party from its 
obligations under this Agreement. Kane County may, in its discretion, amend this Agreement to 
conform with Federal, state or local governmental guidelines, policies and available funding 
amounts. If such amendments result in a change in the funding, the scope of services, or schedule of 
the activities to be undertaken as part of this Agreement, such modifications will be incorporated 
only by written amendment signed by both Parties. The Parties otherwise contemplate that the terms 
of this Agreement shall incorporate any subsequent amendments to the CARES Act or regulations 
promulgated by the Treasury or other federal agency, without need for further written amendment to 
this Agreement and the Recipient agrees to adhere to any amendments to the CARES Act or related 
federal regulations. 

I. Suspension or Termination 

Kane County may suspend or terminate this Agreement if Recipient materially fails to comply with 
any terms of this Agreement, which include (but are not limited to), the following: 

1. Failure to comply with any of the rules, regulations or provisions referred to herein, or such 
statutes, regulations, executive orders, and federal awarding agency guidelines, policies or 
directives as may become applicable at any time; 

2. Failure, for any reason, of Recipient to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations 
under this Agreement; 

3. Ineffective or improper use of funds provided under this Agreement; or 

4. Submission by the Recipient to Kane County reports that are incorrect or incomplete in any 
material respect. 

J. Program Fraud & False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts 

Recipient must comply with 31 U.S.C. Chapter 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and 
Statements, which shall apply to the activities and actions of Recipient pertaining to any matter 
resulting from a contract. 

 



7  

K. Debarment / Suspension and Voluntary Exclusion 

1. Non-Federal entities and contractors are subject to the debarment and suspension regulations 
implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive 
Order 12689, Debarment and Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and the Department of 
Homeland Security’s regulations at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Nonprocurement Debarment and 
Suspension). 

2. These regulations restrict awards, subawards, and contracts with certain parties that are 
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal 
assistance programs and activities. A contract award must not be made to parties listed in 
the Systems of Award Management (“SAM”) Exclusions. SAM Exclusions is the list 
maintained by the General Services Administration that contains the names of parties 
debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. SAM 
exclusions can be accessed at www.sam.gov. 

L. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be interpreted under, and governed by, the 
laws of the State of Illinois, without regard to conflicts of laws principles. Any claim, suit, action, 
or proceeding brought in connection with this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Kane 
County and each party hereby irrevocably consents to the personal and subject matter jurisdiction 
of such court and waives any claim that such court does not constitute a convenient and 
appropriate venue for such claims, suits, actions, or proceedings. 

M. The County, by receiving and processing the reimbursement requests of Recipient, does not 
guarantee approval of the reimbursement requests by the Kane County Board or its authorized 
agents or committees, the United States Department of Treasury, or the Office of the Inspector 
General.  

 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Financial Management 

Recipient agrees to comply with and agrees to adhere to appropriate accounting principles and 
procedures, utilize adequate internal controls, and maintain necessary source documentation for all 
Eligible Expenses. 

B. Duplication of Benefits; Subrogation 

Recipient shall not carry out any of the activities under this Agreement in a manner that results in a 
prohibited duplication of benefits as defined by Section 312 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief 
and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5155) and in accordance with Section 1210 of the Disaster 
Recovery Reform Act of 2018 (division D of Public Law 115–254; 132 Stat. 3442), which amended 
section 312 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 
5155). 

If Recipient receives duplicate benefits from another source, Recipient must refund the benefits 
provided by Kane County to Kane County. 

Recipient must execute and deliver a Duplication of Benefits and Subrogation Agreement 
(“Duplication of Benefits Certification”), in the form attached hereto as Attachment B. Recipient 
shall comply with all terms and conditions of the Duplication of Benefits Certification, including, 



8  

without limitation, Recipient’s obligation to promptly notify Kane County of any disaster assistance 
received from any other source. 

C. Documentation & Recordkeeping 
As required by 2 C.F.R. 200.331(a)(5), Kane County, or any duly authorized representative of Kane 
County, shall have the right of access to any records, documents, financial statements, papers, or 
other records of Recipient that are pertinent to this Agreement, in order to comply with any audits 
pertaining to funds allocated to Recipient under this Agreement. The right of access also includes 
timely and reasonable access to Recipient's personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion 
related to such documents. The right of access is not limited to the required retention period, as set 
forth in paragraph D below, but lasts as long as the records are retained. 

D. Record Retention 

Recipient shall retain sufficient records, which may include, but are not limited to financial records, 
supporting documents, statistical records, and all other Recipient records pertinent to the Agreement 
to show its compliance with the terms of this Agreement, as well as the compliance of all 
subcontractors or consultants paid from funds under this Agreement, for a period of ten (10) years 
from the date of submission of the final expenditure report. 

In circumstances where the reimbursement request has been granted and records are needed to justify 
the reimbursement to the Office of the Inspector General or any other office, official, or department 
which may later become responsible for auditing disbursements of CARES Act funds, failure by the 
Recipient to provide records, for any reason, including but not limited to the prior destruction of 
records, shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. The sole and exclusive remedy for such a breach 
is that the Recipient shall be responsible for repayment of any disbursement which the Office of 
Inspector General, or its successor, finds improper, unsupported, or unable to be verified. 
Additionally, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, or make whole Kane County for any penalty 
assessed against the Kane County based upon the Recipient’s failure to retain or provide records. 

E. Internal Controls 

Recipient must comply with 2 C.F.R. 200.303 and establish and maintain effective internal control 
over the funds allocated under this Agreement and provide reasonable assurance that the Recipient 
is managing the award in compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of the award. These internal controls should be in compliance with guidance in “Standards for 
Internal Control in the Federal Government” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States 
or the “Internal Control Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 

F. Personally Identifiable Information 

Recipient must comply with 2 C.F.R. 200.303(e) and take reasonable measures to safeguard 
protected personally identifiable information, as defined in 2 C.F.R. 200.82, and other information 
designated as sensitive or the Recipient considers sensitive consistent with applicable Federal, state, 
local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality. 

 

 



9  

G. Monitoring & Compliance 

Kane County has the right to and shall evaluate the Recipient’s risk of noncompliance and monitor the 
activities of Recipient as necessary to ensure that the CRF funds are used for authorized purposes, in 
compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
Monitoring of Recipient shall include reviewing invoices for eligible expenses, reviewing payroll 
logs, applicable contracts and other documentation that may be requested by Kane County to 
substantiate eligible expenses. Failure to submit proper documentation verifying eligible expenses 
may result in termination of this agreement and recoupment of awarded funds from the Recipient by 
Kane County. 

Kane County has the right to and shall verify that Recipient is audited as required by 2 C.F.R. Part 
200 Subpart F—Audit Requirements. Kane County may take enforcement action against a 
noncompliant Recipient as described in 2 C.F.R. 200.338.  Remedies for noncompliance of this part 
and in program regulations. 

H. Close-Outs 

Recipient shall close-out its use of funds under this Agreement by complying with the closeout 
procedures set forth in 2 C.F.R. 200.343 and the procedures described below. Recipient's obligation 
to Kane County will not terminate until all close-out requirements are completed.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms of this Agreement shall remain in effect during any period 
that Recipient has control over funding provided under this Agreement. 

I. Audits & Inspections 

All Recipient records with respect to any matters covered by this Agreement shall be made available 
to Kane County, the Federal awarding agency, and the Comptroller General of the United States or 
any of their authorized representatives, at any time during normal business hours, as often as deemed 
necessary, to audit, examine, and make excerpts or transcripts of all relevant data. Any deficiencies 
noted in audit reports must be resolved by Recipient within 30 days after notice of such deficiencies 
by the Recipient. Failure of Recipient to comply with the audit requirements will constitute a violation 
of this Agreement and may result in the withholding of future payments. 

If Recipient expends $750,000 or more in total federal awards (all programs) in a single year, 
Recipient must have a Single Audit or Program-Specific Audit pursuant to 2 C.F.R 200.501(a). 
Issues arising out of noncompliance identified in a Single or Program-Specific Coronavirus Relief 
Funds audit are to receive priority status of remediation or Kane County may require return of all 
funds to Kane County by Recipient. 

J. Payment & Reporting Procedures 

1. Payment Procedures 

Kane County will pay to the Recipient funds available under this Agreement based upon 
information submitted by the Recipient and consistent with the allocations and disbursement 
policies established by Kane County. Payments will be made for eligible expenses included in 
Budget Forms approved by Kane County already incurred since March 1, 2020 that were not 
included in the most recent approved budget as of March 27, 2020 and eligible expenses that 
will be incurred through December 30, 2020. Recipients must first complete a Kane County Unit 



10  

of Government Application for Coronavirus Relief Funds. Once that Application is approved, 
the Recipient will submit requests for reimbursements of eligible expenses actually incurred by 
the Recipient. The County shall pay up the Recipient from funds received from the U.S. 
Department of Treasury and provided herein.  Such funds shall be used for payment of expenses 
eligible under the CARES Act and specifically listed in the budgets attached hereto as Exhibit 
C. 

Recipients should maintain a financial file with copies of back-up documentation for all paid 
eligible expenditures made by the Recipient during the eligible period. Documentation of 
expenditures will be reviewed and verified upon receipt by Kane County. 

a. Requests for reimbursement must be submitted through the on-line application 
processes, at www.countyofkane.org/Pages/CRF.aspx.Incomplete applications may 
result in a delay in a decision regarding of reimbursement requests. 

b. Upon receipt of the Applications, Kane County will confirm receipt of application by 
email. 

c. The received application will be reviewed and Recipient will receive a Notification Letter 
by email indicating denial and/or approval of the request within approximately 10 days.  

d. Notification Letters approving requested funds will contain detailed instructions 
regarding delivery of approved funds to Recipient. Receipt of approved funds will be 
contingent on a fully executed Intergovernmental and Recipient Agreement. 

e. The Recipient must get approval of and retain documentation for any required 
modifications to the original Kane County Unit of Government Application for 
Coronavirus Relief Funds and attached budget to account for any eligible expenditures 
that were not reflected in the original budget.  

2. Reporting Procedures. Recipient will be required to tender to Kane County records 
addressing how the funding was used for eligible expenses. Such reporting may include 
documentation of invoices, submission of payroll logs, proof of contracts, etc. to substantiate 
eligible expenses. Failure to submit proper documentation verifying eligible expenses may result 
in termination of this agreement and recoupment of awarded funds from the Recipient. 

VI. Personnel & Participation Conditions 

1. Hatch Act 

Recipient must comply with provisions of the Hatch Act of 1939 (Chapter 15 of Title V of the 
U.S.C.) limiting the political activities of public employees, as it relates to the programs funded. 

2. Conflict of Interest 

The Recipient shall maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and 
governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, award and administration of 
contracts. No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or 
administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real or apparent 
conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, 
any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs 
or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a 
tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. 



11  

VII. ATTACHMENTS 

All attachments to this Agreement are incorporated as if set out fully. In the event of any inconsistencies 
or conflict between the language of this Agreement and the attachments, the language of the attachments 
shall control, but only to the extent of the conflict or inconsistency. 

This Agreement contains the following attachments: 

• Attachment A – Eligible Expenses 

• Attachment B – Duplication of Benefits Certification 

• Attachment C – Budget forms, to be appended upon approval by Kane County 
 

VIII. SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected 
thereby and all other parts of this Agreement shall nevertheless be in full force and effect. 

IX. WAIVER 

Kane County’s failure to act with respect to a breach by the Recipient does not waive its right to act with 
respect to subsequent or similar breaches. The failure of Kane County to exercise or enforce any right or 
provision shall not constitute a waiver of such right or provision. 

X. CERTIFICATION 
The Recipient hereby certifies that they have the authority and approval from its governing body to execute 
this Agreement and request reimbursement from Kane County from the allocation of the Coronavirus 
Relief Fund provided to Kane County for eligible expenditures. The Recipient further certifies the funds 
received for reimbursement from the Coronavirus Relief Funds were or will be used only to cover those 
costs that: 

 
a. Are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); 
b. Were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020; and 
c. Were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020. 

 
Recipient understands any award of funds pursuant to this agreement must adhere to official federal 
guidance issued or to be issued on what constitutes a necessary expenditure and that the Recipient has 
reviewed the guidance established by U.S. Department of the Treasury and certify costs meet the required 
guidance. Any funds expended by the Recipient or its subcontractor(s) in any manner that does not adhere 
to official federal guidance shall be returned to Kane County. 

 
Recipient agrees that they will retain documentation of all uses of the funds, including but not limited to 
invoices and/or sales receipts in a manner consistent with §200.333 Retention requirements for records 
of 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
 
Recipient understands any funds provided pursuant to this agreement cannot be used as a revenue 
replacement for lower than expected tax or other revenue collections and cannot be used for expenditures 
for which the Recipient has received any other emergency COVID-19 supplemental funding (whether 



12  

state, federal, or private in nature) for that same expense. 
 

XI. SUBAWARD INFORMATION 
The Federal Award associated with this Agreement is as follows: 

CFDA Number:                                                21.019 
Title:                                                                  Coronavirus Relief Fund 
Federal Awarding Agency:                              United States Treasury 

The following information is provided pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.331(a)(1): 

• Recipient's name (must match the name associated with its unique entity identifier): Village of 
North Aurora  

• Recipient's unique entity identifier (DUNS): 32324675 

• Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): SLT0201 

• Federal Award Date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

• Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date: July 1, 2020, through December 30, 2020. 

• Total Amount of Federal Funds allocated to the Recipient: $1,062,765.00 

• Federal Award Program Description: 

Kane County has received Coronavirus Relief Funds pursuant to the CARES Act, a portion of 
which it has chosen to allocate in the spirit of intergovernmental cooperation to units of local 
government. Units of local government may apply for County awarded Coronavirus Relief Funds 
pursuant to the following procedures and consistent with eligibility guidance. Available funds 
will be distributed to units of local government consistent with their respective allocations and 
based on the type of expenditure, the volume of requests, and the balance of funds available. 

• Name of Federal Awarding Agency: Department of Treasury 

• Name of pass-through entity: County of Kane, Illinois 

• Contact Information for pass-through entity:  
Kane County Coronavirus Relief Fund Program Manager  
Attn: Faviola Guzman 
100 S. Third Street, 4th Floor 
Geneva, IL 60134 
crf@co.kane.il.us 

• Award is for Research & Development (R&D): No 
 

XII. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties for the use of funds received under 
this Agreement and it supersedes all prior or contemporaneous communications and proposals, whether 
electronic, oral, or written between the Parties relating to Kane County’s allocation of CRF funding to 
Recipient. This Agreement is subject to availability of Federal assistance under the Coronavirus Relief 



13  

Funds as authorized under the CARES Act. Kane County has no legal requirement to provide funding to 
any Recipient. 

 
VI. SIGNATURE AUTHORITY 

The following specific officers/officials, or their authorized designees, are required to sign this Agreement 
on behalf of Recipient. Note: If this Agreement is signed by a designee, a duly authenticated delegation 
of authority evidencing the signer’s authority to execute the Agreement for and on behalf of the Recipient 
must be attached to the Agreement for review by Kane County.  The following signatory on behalf of 
Kane County has been authorized to execute this Agreement by resolution of the Kane County Board or 
authorized committee thereof.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused their duly authorized representatives to 
execute this Agreement on the dates hereafter set forth below. 

   

Recipient:                                                                                                                                
 

Signed:   Its Duly Authorized Agent 

 
Printed Name:      Title:    

Date:    
 
 

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
 
 

Signed:   Its Duly Authorized Agent 

 
Printed Name:      Title:    

Date:    
 

Approved as to form: 
 
 

Signed:    

Office of the Kane County State’s Attorney 



 

1  

ATTACHMENT A – ELIGIBLE EXPENSES 

Eligible expenses are subject to approval by Kane County and are contingent on their allowance under the respective 
funding sources. Eligible expenses are those incurred for response and recovery activities as a result of a declared 
emergency. Kane County will review all expenses submitted for reimbursement. Reimbursement shall only be made 
for eligible expenses that are directly tied to response and recovery activities related to COVID-19. Expenses must 
be allowable pursuant to the Federal agency award requirements. Expenses listed below are taken directly from the 
guidance of the U.S. Department of Treasury, as of nonexclusive. 

Eligible Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) Expenses 

The CARES Act requires that the payments from the Coronavirus Relief Fund only be used to cover expenses that— 

1. Are necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus 
Disease 2019 (COVID–19); 

2. Were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date of enactment 
of the CARES Act) for the State or government; and 

3. Were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020. 

Eligible expenditures, which fit within the three CARES Act requirements outlined above, include, but 

are not limited to, payment for: 

1. Medical expenses such as: 

o COVID-19-related expenses of public hospitals, clinics, and similar facilities. 

o Expenses of establishing temporary public medical facilities and other measures to increase 
COVID-19 treatment capacity, including related construction costs. 

o Costs of providing COVID-19 testing, including serological testing. 

o Emergency medical response expenses, including emergency medical transportation, related to 
COVID-19. 

o Expenses for establishing and operating public telemedicine capabilities for COVID-19- related 
treatment. 

2. Public health expenses such as: 

o Expenses for communication and enforcement by State, territorial, local, and Tribal governments 
of public health orders related to COVID-19. 

o Expenses for acquisition and distribution of medical and protective supplies, including sanitizing 
products and personal protective equipment, for medical personnel, police officers, social workers, 
child protection services, and child welfare officers, direct service providers for older adults and 
individuals with disabilities in community settings, and other public health or safety workers in 
connection with the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

o Expenses for disinfection of public areas and other facilities, e.g., nursing homes, in response to 
the COVID-19 public health emergency. 

o Expenses for technical assistance to local authorities or other entities on mitigation of COVID-19- 
related threats to public health and safety. 

o Expenses for public safety measures undertaken in response to COVID-19. 



 

2  

o Expenses for quarantining individuals. 
 
Payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar employees whose services are 
substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID19 public health emergency. [NOTE: Kane County 
will only approve payroll expenses for public safety, public health, health care, human services, or similar employees 
whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency, if 
those expenses were wholly unbudgeted OR if budgeted, were payroll expenses that were diverted for a substantially 
different use, i.e., payroll for those employees’ whose work was diverted for substantially different functions due to 
the COVID-19 public health emergency.  For administrative convenience, the entire payroll cost of an employee whose 
time is substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency is eligible, if 
unbudgeted, if budgeted – see above. For administrative convenience, public health and public safety employees are 
presumed to have been substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency, 
if unbudgeted, if budgeted – see above.]   

3. Expenses of actions to facilitate compliance with COVID-19-related public health measures, such as: 

o Expenses for food delivery to residents, including, for example, senior citizens and other vulnerable 
populations, to enable compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 

o Expenses to facilitate distance learning, including technological improvements, in connection with 
school closings to enable compliance with COVID-19 precautions. 

o Expenses to improve telework capabilities for public employees to enable compliance with 
COVID-19 public health precautions. 

o Expenses of providing paid sick and paid family and medical leave to public employees to enable 
compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 

o COVID-19-related expenses of maintaining state prisons and county jails, including as relates to 
sanitation and improvement of social distancing measures, to enable compliance with COVID-19 
public health precautions. 

o Expenses for care for homeless populations provided to mitigate COVID-19 effects and enable 
compliance with COVID-19 public health precautions. 

4. Any other COVID-19-related expenses reasonably necessary to the function of government that satisfy the 
Fund’s eligibility criteria, excluding costs associated in conducting Coronavirus Relief Fund Single or 
Program-Specific audits. 



 

1  

ATTACHMENT B – DUPLICATION OF BENEFITS CERTIFICATION 
 
 

In consideration of Recipient’s receipt of funds or the commitment of funds by  Kane County, Recipient hereby assigns to Kane 
County all of Recipient’s future rights to reimbursement and all payments received from any grant, subsidized loan, or insurance 
policies or coverage or any other reimbursement or relief program related to or administered by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency, the Small Business Administration or any other source of funding that were the basis of the calculation 
of the portion of the Coronavirus Relief Funding transferred to the Recipient under the Intergovernmental and Recipient 
Agreement for Coronavirus Relief Funds Agreement entered into by and between Kane County, Illinois, and  on  , 
2020. Any such funds received by the Recipient shall be referred to herein as “additional funds.” 

Additional funds received by the Recipient that are determined to be a Duplication of Benefits (“DOB”) shall be referred to herein 
as “DOB Funds.” Recipient agrees to immediately notify Kane County of the source and receipt of additional funds related to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. Kane County shall notify the Federal awarding agency of the additional funding reported by 
Recipient to Kane County. Recipient agrees to reimburse Kane County for any additional funding received by the Recipient if 
such additional funding is determined to be a DOB by Kane County, the Federal awarding agency or an auditing agency. 
Recipient further agrees to apply for additional funds that the Recipient may be entitled to under any applicable Disaster 
Program in an effort to maximize funding sources available to the Recipient and Kane County. 

Recipient acknowledges that in the event that Recipient makes or files any false, misleading, or fraudulent statement and/or 
omits or fails to disclose any material fact in connection with the funding under this Agreement, Recipient may be subject to 
civil and/or criminal prosecution by federal, State and/or local authorities. In any proceeding to enforce this Agreement, Kane 
County shall be entitled to recover all costs of enforcement, including actual attorney’s fees. 

 
 

Recipient:   
 
 

Signed:   

Its Duly Authorized Agent 

 
Printed Name:    Title:  

Date:    



 

1  

ATTACHMENT C – Budget Worksheet Documents, *to be appended upon approval of 
Kane County 

 




	20-10-19 Village Board Agenda
	20-10-05 VB Minutes
	Bills List 10-19-20
	Special Event Permit Application for Share & Care Halloween Event + Memo
	Special Event Application
	Certificate of Insurance

	Employee Vacation Time Accrual Balances + Memo
	Resolution

	2021 Road Program Professional Engineering Services Agreement
	Agreement for Professional Services
	Standard Terms and Conditions
	Scope of Services
	Estimates
	Standard Schedule of Charges

	CARES Funding Kane County + Memo
	Resolution Accepting CARES Funding
	IGA for CARES Funds
	Summary of Municipal CARES Fund Application





